
FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION 
Office of Insurance Regulation 

Materials Available on the Web at: 

http://www.floir.com/Sections/GovAffairs/FSC.aspx 

 

September 20, 2016 
 

MEMBERS 
Governor Rick Scott 

Attorney General Pam Bondi 
Chief Financial Officer Jeff Atwater 

Commissioner Adam Putnam 
 
 
 
Contact: Caitlin Murray      9:00 A.M. 
  (850-413-5005)      LL-03, The Capitol 
          Tallahassee, Florida 

ITEM     SUBJECT    RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.   Minutes of the Financial Services Commission for April 26, 2016. 
 
 http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/cabinet/agenda16/0426/transcript.pdf    
 
  (ATTACHMENT 1)                    FOR APPROVAL 

 

2.  Request for Approval for Final Adoption of Repeal of Rule 69N-121.007,.010; Public 
Records 

      Currently, Rules 69N-121.007 and 121.010, Florida Administrative Code, prescribe the 
procedure by which the Office processes public records requests and the indexing of final 
orders, respectively. As the public records process is now mostly governed by statute and 
the indexing process for final orders has been revised by statutory amendment in 2015, 
these rules are now unnecessary. 

 
 (ATTACHMENT 2)    APPROVAL FOR FINAL ADOPTION 
 

3.  Request for Approval for Final Adoption of Repeal of Rules 69N-3.001,.002,.003,.004, 
.005,.006,.007; Smoking Policies       

    The rules established the smoking policy for the Office, pursuant to sections 120.53 and 
386.205, Florida Statutes. Previously, section 386.205(6), gave state agencies authority to 
create policies and adopt rules to administer the Florida Clean Indoor Air Act. Subsequently, 
the Legislature revised chapter 386, giving rulemaking authority to the Departments of 
Health and Business and Professional Regulation to adopt rules to implement the provisions 
of the Act. The rule repeal would delete now obsolete and unnecessary rules. 
 
(ATTACHMENT 3)    APPROVAL FOR FINAL ADOPTION 

 

http://www.floir.com/Sections/GovAffairs/FSC.aspx
http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/cabinet/agenda16/0426/transcript.pdf


4.   Request for Approval for Final Adoption of Repeal of Rule 69O-186.010; Insurer’s 
Assumption of Certain Liability 

     Section 627.777, Florida Statutes gives the Office the authority to directly review and 
approve forms for use by title insurance underwriters and agents.  The Office recently 
approved a revised version of the Closing Protection Letter (CPL) which was filed with the 
Office for approval pursuant to Sections 627.777 and 627.786, Florida Statutes.  The rule 
contains an outdated CPL form.  As such, the rule that is subject to repeal is obsolete and 
should be removed from the Florida Administrative Code.  
 
(ATTACHMENT 4)    APPROVAL FOR FINAL ADOPTION 

 

5.   Request for Approval for Final Adoption of Amendments to Rule 69O-137.001; Annual and 
Quarterly Reporting Requirements 

     Section 624.424, Florida Statutes, requires insurers to file quarterly and annual financial 
reports with the Office of Insurance Regulation and allows the Office to enact rules setting 
the standards for those reports. The rule is being amended to adopt the 2016 NAIC 
Quarterly Statement Manuals, the 2015 NAIC Annual Statement Instructions Manuals, the 
2015 and 2016 NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manuals and 2016 NAIC User’s 
Guide. The current rule adopted the 2015 NAIC Quarterly Statement Manuals, the 2014 
NAIC Annual Statement Instructions Manuals, and the 2014 and 2015 NAIC Accounting 
Practices and Procedures Manuals.   

 
      (ATTACHMENT 5)    APPROVAL FOR FINAL ADOPTION 
 

6.   Request for Approval for Final Adoption of Amendments to Rule 69O-138.001; NAIC 
Financial Condition Examiners Handbook Adopted 

      Section 624.316, Florida Statutes, requires the Office to examine insurer’s financial 
condition using generally accepted accounting procedures. This statute also allows the 
Office to adopt the NAIC Financial Condition Examiners Handbook to facilitate these exams.     
The rule is being amended to adopt the 2015 and 2016 NAIC Financial Condition Examiners 
Handbooks.  The current rule adopted the 2015 and 2014 versions of these handbooks. 

 
      (ATTACHMENT 6)    APPROVAL FOR FINAL ADOPTION 

 

7.  Request for Approval for Publication of Amendments to Rule 69O-161.001; 010; .011; Prior 
Authorization Forms 

Section 627.42392, Florida Statutes, requires the Financial Services Commission to develop 
a standard Prior Authorization Form as well as guidelines for prior authorization forms. The 
rule will establish guidelines for all prior authorization forms which ensure the general 
uniformity of such forms, and to adopt a prior authorization form for use by health insurance 
issuers which do not provide an electronic prior authorization process for use by its 
contracted providers.    

 
      (ATTACHMENT 7)    APPROVAL FOR PUBLICATION 
 
 



8. Office of Insurance Regulation 4th Quarter Report FY 2015-16, FY 2017-18 Legislative 
Budget Request, and 2017 Legislative Initiatives 

 

(ATTACHMENT 8)      FOR APPROVAL 

 





1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

1

STATE OF FLORIDA

IN RE: MEETING OF THE GOVERNOR AND
CABINET

_________________________________________/

CABINET MEMBERS: GOVERNOR RICK SCOTT
ATTORNEY GENERAL PAM BONDI
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER JEFF
ATWATER
COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTURE
ADAM PUTNAM

DATE: TUESDAY, APRIL 26, 2016

LOCATION: CABINET MEETING ROOM
LOWER LEVEL, THE CAPITOL
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

REPORTED BY: NANCY S. METZKE, RPR, FPR
COURT REPORTER

C & N REPORTERS
POST OFFICE BOX 3093

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32315-3093
(850) 697-8314 / FAX (850) 697-8715

nancy@metzke.com
candnreporters.com



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

2

INDEX

PAGE NO.
Appointment - Interim Executive
Director Department of Veterans'
Affairs 4

Appointment Process Discussion -
Executive Director, Department of
Veterans' Affairs 4

Office of Insurance Regulation
By Commissioner McCarty 7

Board of Trustees of the Internal
Improvement Trust Fund

By Secretary Steverson 35

Administration Commission
By Director Kruse 51

Interview and Appointment for the
Office of Insurance Regulation
Commissioner

Belinda Miller 115

Raymond Blacklidge 138

Bill Hager 152

Representative Bragg 162

* * * *



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

7

OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Next I'd like to welcome

Commissioner McCarty with the Office of Insurance

Regulation.

Good morning, Kevin.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Good morning, Governor,

members of the Financial Services Commission.

The first agenda item today is approval of the

minutes for the December 8th meeting of the

Financial Services Commission.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a motion?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: So move.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

CFO ATWATER: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Okay. Agenda Item

Number 2 is a request for final adoption for a rule

concerning the registration and the holding company

acts, Administrative Rule 69O-143.046, 047, and

056.

This rule regulates the Insurance Holding Act



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

8

as part of our financial modernization initiative,

as well as collecting information about the

enterprise risk.

The rules that were adopted -- we had two

workshops on the rule, and it comports with what is

being done nationally so that our form is

consistent with the forms adopted in other states.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a motion to approve

on the item?

CFO ATWATER: So move.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Okay. The next agenda

item is request for approval for repeal of

Rule 69N-121.007, 010 on public records. This rule

prescribed the process and procedure for the Office

to process public document requests, as well as to

index final orders. That rule was superseded by

legislation in 2015, therefore rendering the rule

obsolete and unnecessary.

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM: So moved.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

9

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Item Number 4 is

request for approval for publication of repeal of

Rule 69N-121.066 on informal conferences. This

rule provides for a procedure for informal

conferences before the Office. This rule is

unnecessary; and therefore, we're requesting a

change because we NO longer -- we put a corrective

action plan; and therefore, an informal procedure

is NO longer necessary.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a motion?

CFO ATWATER: So moved.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Agenda Item Number 5 is

request for approval for publication of repeal of

Rule 69N-3001, 002, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7. These rules



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

10

establish a smoking policy for the office. These

rules have been rendered obsolete because of

revisions to Florida law.

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM: So moved.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: These are now governed

under the Florida Clean Air Act and have been

obsolete for a while.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: The Commissioner --

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: -- motioned and a second.

Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: All right. Agenda Item

Number 6 is request for approval for pub --

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Why don't we do 6, 7, and 8

together?

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Okay. Request for

approval for publication of repeal of the rule on

insurer assumption of certain liability. That has

to do with -- Florida Statutes have been revised

that allows for the individual company approval and

that we NO longer need that law -- that rule in

place because we now do individual company



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

11

approval.

Item Number 7 is for publication for

amendments of the quarterly statement. This simply

updates and gives us the latest quarterly reports,

the quarterly manuals, the annual statement

instructions, the accounting practices and

procedures, and the NAIC user guide, which is done

on an annual basis.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Okay. Was that 6 and 7? How

about 8?

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: That was for -- I'm

sorry, that wasn't for repeal. That was a

different one. Do you want to just do the two

repeals together?

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Okay. I'm sorry, I

apologize, Governor. Request 5, request for

approval for repeal on the smoking policy and for

repeal of the rule governing closing protection

letters.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Let's do 7 and 8 also.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Okay. Seven is for

adoption of the annual and quarterly report

requirements and 7 is -- 8 requires the annual and

quarterly report requirements; and 9 is for the



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

12

NAIC Financial Condition Examiner's Handbook.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Okay. I think we're going to

do 6, 7, and 8. So is there a motion on 6, 7, 8?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: So moved.

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM: So that's one repeal and

two rules --

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: Yes.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Right?

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM: -- for publication?

Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Okay. Any comments or

objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries. So now we're on Item 9, performance

measures.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Item 9 is performance

reports to give you some highlights of the Office

of Insurance Regulation, as well as a cumulative

report on our performance measures from July 1st,

2015, to March 31st, 2016.

The first slide you've seen before. It's

defining success. Of course an important part of

providing success in the Florida marketplace is to

promote markets, to encourage products to come to



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

13

Florida. We also want to protect consumers and

make sure that those products are there at

affordable prices.

We want to protect consumers from unscrupulous

behavior. We want to monitor the financial

condition of companies. There is NO more important

consumer protection than ensuring an insurance

company has the financial wherewithal to pay their

claims. And lastly, we want to do all of these

things in an effective and efficient manner.

The next few slides we're going to talk about

will discuss kind of selected activities over the

course of this report and some of the

accomplishments, along with some of the challenges

and opportunities we see in the life and health, as

well as in the property and casualty markets.

I'm only going to talk about a few of the

details on each of the slides, but I'll be happy to

answer any questions you have in the totality of

the presentation.

One of the major challenges we've had,

of course, in the last several years is the

disruption in the marketplace as a result of the

passage of the Affordable Care Act. One of our

main challenges is to maintain as much stability in



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

14

the marketplace as we can. Unfortunately, because

of the volatility in the market and because of a

number of factors, most notably, the elimination of

underwriting and guaranteed issue, which is --

you know, underwriting is a key element of

insurance.

So this has obviously brought about a great

deal of instability in the marketplace. And as a

consequence, one of the casualties of that has been

the Preferred Medical Plan, which has been an

excellent HMO in the Miami-Dade County for the last

40 years. Unfortunately, it has become a victim of

the volatility in the market, most notably through

what they call the three Rs: The risk adjustment,

risk corridor, and the reinsurance program.

And these are programs meant to create rate

stability, but in point of fact, caused a great

deal of instability in terms of market planning for

companies, particularly those companies that have a

limited amount of a capital basis to begin with.

So we helped to transition those policies without

interruption of coverage to other members in the

voluntary market.

Another I think important issue, as we talked

about before, the -- I know we've talked about this



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

15

with General Bondi, and the concern about the

centers of excellence and the narrowing of

networks; and that what we're seeing now with the

Affordable Care Act is more balanced billing

because more and more people are not in network.

and I want to congratulate the CFO and the

Legislature for enacting balanced billing reforms

this year. I think it's an important first step to

help protect consumers.

We do have prohibitions against balanced

billing and HMOs, and now we extended it beyond

that marketplace.

And lastly, I wanted to highlight, as you're

familiar -- may be familiar, the Office has worked

very closely with the Legislature,

Senator Benacquisto and Representative Hager; and

of course, CFO Atwater, I want to thank you for

your leadership on the issue for unclaimed

property, their settlement agreements.

As you know, General Bondi, myself, and the

CFO launched a campaign in 2011. We were

successful at bringing about the first settlement

to ensure that people -- that beneficiaries were

getting paid their benefits under their life

insurance contracts.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

16

As you know, there has been what's called the

selective use of the Social Security death master

where insurance companies would use the

Social Security death master to their advantage but

would not use it when it came to finding

beneficiaries. And this law that has passed is the

culmination of the work we've done.

We've also -- we're responsible for a national

task force which has brought about seven and a half

to $8 billion returned across the nation, and it

is -- and Florida law is now actually the

gold standard for going in the future on how to

codify through agreements that we have reached.

And that has been very successful and actually was

featured on 60 Minutes recently.

There are also some challenges coming up in

the marketplace, and one of the challenges I want

to highlight to you is the financial risk facing

Floridians, but also facing the State of Florida

when it comes to caring for long-term care for our

senior citizens. We have an increasingly aging

population. There has been an estimate by the

Bipartisan Policy Center that says that about 70%

of the people over the age of 65 will require

long-term care services in the amount of



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

17

a hundred thousand dollars or more.

The Center estimates that about a quarter of

these individuals will need that, and yet consumers

are not buying long-term care. And we know the

pressure it's going to put on Medicaid budgets

around the country. Right now about $120 billion

is dedicated nationally to pay for Medicaid

long-term care.

One of our challenges for the State of Florida

is how we can lessen that Medicaid burden. And one

of the ways to do that is to encourage companies,

as well as individuals, to purchase long-term care

policies. A lot of people have been scared off of

long-term care policies recently because of the

high prices, some of the insolvencies, and some of

the challenges, and the history of long-term care.

But we need to look at innovations in products,

particularly life products that may be able to be

converted to a long-term care product so that there

is an income stream to deal with -- to hedge the

longevity risk.

Before we go to that, one last thing I want to

go -- as I talked about the instability in the

marketplace, our HMO laws have not been revised,

our minimum capital surplus requirements are still



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

18

at $1.5 million. We don't have risk-based capital

tools that we had for health insurance companies,

and one of the challenges going forward is to help

our insurance industry by providing those tools.

One of the things we've seen is that companies

get dramatic increases in the number of policies.

They may have $20 million in surplus, they may

estimate getting a 20,000 policy, but you can't

turn the hose off, so to speak. As soon as the

policies start coming in, if you're a lower-priced

HMO -- we had several examples of companies

expecting 30 and getting 130. Well, they don't

have the IT, the infrastructure, et cetera. So one

of the challenges continues -- not just the capital

base, but ensuring some way of bringing some

stability to the marketplace.

Now pivoting to the property insurance market,

Florida continues to enjoy in terms of its

homeowners' market a very robust market. We have

12 companies that are our companies that have been

indigenous to Florida that have expanded to other

states. That geographic and business

diversification is a good thing; it says positive

things about our market.

We've also had five additional companies that



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

19

added lines of business. Overall our companies are

entering the market. We have over 4,000 licensed

entities in Florida. The market is good and we

continue to look for a successful future.

Of course, one of the challenges we see is

Citizens. Citizens has had remarkable success in

its depopulation efforts. Thank the Governor for

his encouragement in this regard, where there's a

60% reduction in policy, 65% in its exposure. We

went from 1.5 million policies to under 400,000

last month.

So we continue to get good reports in that

regard and continue to see companies looking for

more takeout opportunities with regard to Citizens'

property insurance market; however, at the last

hearing -- the rate hearing, we did have evidence

of a growing problem that Citizens identified.

And that is the growing problem of water

damage and roof damage as a result of assignment of

benefits. And the situation occurs when a

policyholder assigns their benefits to a

third-party person to repair their property and

then that person goes after the insurance company

for the money.

We've seen from data submitted that in



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

20

south Florida there is -- the filings highlighted a

128% increase in the three -- tri-county area for

the average water claim. And our data call has

shown that that is not simply limited to

south Florida, that it's initially a south Florida

problem, but we're seeing that kind of increased

frequency and severity occurring in central and

west Florida as well.

So we have been working with Citizens

collaboratively to develop policy form changes that

do not affect the consumer but puts in some

parameters to ensure that the insurance company has

an opportunity to do an inspection before these

other repairs are effectuated, and then those

assignment of benefits, and hopefully addressing

that issue. We have 13 companies who have filed a

very similar form filing with our office, and we're

going to continue to work to address that problem.

The last issue I want to address, of course,

is a major issue for the State of Florida since we

represent about 37% of the flood market. As you

know, last year I sent a -- communicated with FEMA

and the National Flood Program to get our arms

around the ratemaking process so that we can have

an open and transparent process.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

21

I'm pleased to report that we have met with

them and a number of states, that we have an open

and transparent process for us to evaluate the

data, to develop rates, and hopefully promote a

private-sector market to help augment the National

-- the Federal Flood Program.

I also want to thank Congressman Ross for his

leadership in providing -- introducing legislation

that promotes the private marketplace and

flexibility and licensing in states, and eliminates

some of the burdens that the Federal Government has

placed on the private marketplace.

As in terms of challenges and opportunities

with regard to the property market, again, I want

to reiterate our concern about ALD. We are

cautiously optimistic that the policy changes that

we are encouraging the private sector to adopt,

along with Citizens, will address that problem. We

need to continue to closely monitor the situation,

collecting information necessary for policymakers

to make the necessary changes if that is needed.

With regard to auto insurance rates, I commend

the CFO and the Governor for their leadership on

PIP reform in 2012 with House Bill 119. I was very

optimistic it was passed, but the Governor told me



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

22

it was going to pass and encouraged me to think of

like mind and I --

GOVERNOR SCOTT: We didn't waste any votes,

did we?

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: NO, we didn't, sir.

NO, we did not. That was my first foray into

radio, so I have a fond appreciation for how

difficult it is to get bills passed.

I do want to point out, however, that,

you know, a lot of people are saying, oh, where's

the big savings in PIP? Well, the truth of the

matter is, the year before we passed this

legislation, PIP rates were going up about 46%.

After the passage, the PIP rates went down 13.9%.

But what we've seen in the last year and a

half is probably about a 13% increase over a year

and a half period. So people are saying, well, is

there something wrong with the PIP law?

Well, the fact of the matter is, people are

driving more, and they are driving more, and

accidents have increased commiserate with that

number, about 14 or 15% increase in the frequency

of accidents. So therefore, you can probably glean

from that that that's probably one of the driving

cost factors behind it.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

23

In addition, we are working with

Senator Brandes and other members of the

Legislature to commission a comprehensive study to

see what the other cost drivers are and if there

are some other legislative alternatives to the PIP

system going forward.

And lastly, I just want -- here are the

quantitative measures. This slide shows the

10 measures that the Financial Services Commission

established for our office earlier this year. Our

cumulative average score for the last

three quarters is 4.9. The results for each

measure is on the chart.

Are there any questions regarding the

performance measures?

GOVERNOR SCOTT: NO. Thanks, Kevin, you've

done a good job.

Does anybody have any questions?

CFO ATWATER: Yeah, Governor, might I?

GOVERNOR SCOTT: CFO.

CFO ATWATER: Thank you, Governor.

I'd like to first -- the Commissioner brought

up two pieces of legislation that passed this

spring -- this winter session that's just

completed.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

24

Governor, I'd like to express to you our

thanks as a department that spends a tremendous

amount of time dealing with the consumer-related

matters in our Consumer Services Division which,

therefore, understanding the need for the balancing

billing to be addressed, you all gave that

thoughtful scrutiny, and I just want to express our

gratitude for how -- the conclusions that you drew

and the merits of that. It was a very hard

balancing act.

We've already had this conversation about the

attractiveness of the Florida marketplace in

general, balancing the regulatory with market

dynamics; and I hope we've found the right balance.

We'll see how this plays out over time. But

thank you there.

And I'd also like to express -- the passage of

what was known as the Unclaimed Property Life

Insurance Settlements, that, again, you all

thoughtfully considered that; and, again, trying to

walk a balancing act between holding people

accountable for a promise that was made and yet

sending a message -- trying to send the right

message as well, that this continues to be a

place -- and, Governor, I want to say thank you for



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

25

both of those and the care that you gave those.

Commissioner, you know, this is a moment for

review, and you're showing us the objective

measures. I'd like to add my thanks to you. Those

have to be, you know, two of the -- I think the

best carefully balanced initiatives to ensure

people that in Florida you're going to get the best

products available, best rate available with a

dynamic market and yet we're not going to forget

the consumers at the center of this conversation.

So my thanks to you and your team.

I just -- you're going to have to look back as

this being I think one of the most successful

consumer-related sessions that did not tip out the

balance to attract capital to Florida, so I want to

just express that to you, and I know that -- I've

said it before to you, and in your humility you

quickly turn around your entire team and express

your gratitude to them, and that's what a leader

does.

You mentioned a couple of items, one is

long-term care. You talked about a need for some

creative product, and you're looking ahead. Are

you seeing anybody that is setting the table for

that? Are there examples that you can point to?



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

26

It would certainly appear that business models

of old are not working; and that cost is running

away; and, therefore, it's not going to be

available. Anything that you're seeing that would

give us a sign that a product is on the way and

someone has figured it out?

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Well, yes, and you make

a very good point. Many of these products were

developed in the 1990s, and the expectations and

assumptions about life expectancy and utilization

were grossly underestimated. As you can think,

it's hard to predict something 30 years out,

particularly the number of seniors now that have

dementia and Alzheimer's which requires much more

intensive care. Those were underestimated at the

time as well.

One of the things we're trying to do is to

have a diversification of the product, looking at a

product that is a hybrid. It's a life product and

a long-term care product. So for instance, you

would have the life product for a year, and then

you'd reach a point where you don't necessarily

need the proceeds and you could then convert those

for those potential benefits to use as a hedge

against longevity and use it for that long-term



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

27

care.

There is a products innovation group that

we're participating with, with a number of other

states. Of course Florida and California in

particular have a very substantial part of the

market, and we're very active in working together

with our colleagues around the country through

and -- by and through a task force, working with

the companies to develop alternative products.

CFO ATWATER: And as you mentioned, obviously

for us as decision makers, our Legislature as

policymakers, figuring this out with the Florida

demographic is going to be very, very important.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Yes.

CFO ATWATER: And how about -- next question,

again, I don't think -- well, let me just say this:

Kevin, some day someone is going to write the book,

you know, Florida Insurance 2004 to 2020. It may

not be a best seller, but it -- you know, granted,

it may not be at airport news stands, but it's been

an extraordinary odyssey, to say the least.

And I think the conversation that you've

touched on on the depopulation of Citizens is

something that I really hope at some point, again,

a broader public can appreciate and understand.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

28

You've credited the Governor, most appropriately,

that it's not an easy conversation to have because

there are perceptions that come with that.

Are people being pushed to something less

valuable? Is someone capable of taking them on,

both the quality of that player and the ability to

perform at a later date.

This has moved -- if we do everything right,

what benefit we have offered to the consumer by

offering them a private-market player who will

compete for their business, as well as innovative

ideas in service, as well as placing that risk

across the globe rather than on the back of

taxpayers.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Absolutely.

CFO ATWATER: And so though it has been a long

process -- and I think you even quietly or

subtilely throughout that warning of the

possibility where we may start going with water

claims, et cetera, could we see private-market

fear. But so could you offer us a little bit of an

insight into your stress testing last year?

One significant question remains or that's

most frequently addressed is: Are the domestic

players skilled, capitalized, re-insured, ready?



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

29

Now we're hoping we don't find that out through an

event, but it's your responsibility to make the

best appropriate call on that.

Can you give us some insights into the process

you've used?

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Absolutely, you're

absolutely right.

I think one of the things we had is an issue

of confidence with regard to new players in the

marketplace. As you're aware, many of the marquis

names that are familiar on a national basis

retrenched from Florida, and we needed to fill that

gap. And we did that through the innovations,

quite frankly, of the Florida legislature, as in

that time period, 2006, we actually put forward a

surplus notes program to help fund the companies

and provide incentives for capital to come to

Florida.

But then you had the issue of: Who are these

companies? How much confidence do we have that

they're going to be able to pay claims? Some of

those companies did go through 2004, 2005

successfully. Other companies were formed in the

new class of companies following that time period.

But what we have initiated over the last



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

30

several years, and with your help last year even

intensified our stress test even more. What we do,

the process we go through is we do an initial data

call.

We collect information on every company doing

business in Florida on their reinsurance program,

and then what we do is we have them run their

portfolio through their own model, the same model

that they use for their rates. Then we take that

same information and run it through the FIU model,

and then we have -- so we have a check and balance,

if you will, to that.

We come up with a different scenario each

year, stress scenario. This past year we used the

scenario of 2000 where we had Charley, Frances,

Ivan, and Jeanne, and we ran that; but we also ran

Andrew to see how companies would perform, and then

looked at their capital position after that.

So we would want -- so it tells us a couple of

things: First of all, is the company going to be

there to pay the claim? And Number 2, are they

going to be able to recapitalize and do business in

the following year.

And so every company is a little -- and NO

company is the same. Every company has a different



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

31

appetite for risk, so we don't have a prescription

as to what a company has to do. They just have to

demonstrate to us that through capital, through

insurance, or alternate reinsurance structures,

which has really been the genesis of revitalization

of the marketplace. There's a huge growth in the

alternative markets and reinsurance in Bermuda;

that they have the wherewithal to pay those claims

and then -- and hopefully be around to recapitalize

for the next year.

Last year's test, as I reported to you, we had

one company that did not pass and then it went out

and purchased more reinsurance so that it passed

the test.

We're going through the same process this

year. We're just now doing the initial data call

where we get the information. In Florida,

of course, most of these companies purchase their

reinsurance in May, so that would be the initial

part of the data call.

That will be supplemented then by the stress

test, which is two parts: One the company runs,

and then we run ours. And then we harmonize that

and come up with a plan to ensure that they have

the capital to pay claims.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

32

CFO ATWATER: Commissioner, thank you.

Is there -- you know, one of the conversations

we've had -- I don't know if you've had any more

consideration on this, again, the public being able

to understand the quality of the stress test and

being able to have the confidence that you would

have being that you pick out the events, you run

them as multiple events in a given cycle, you're

running them against very current portfolios that

would show you the geographic dispersion of the

policies or the geographic concentration of

policies.

So for today or another time, but again, I

would hope we continue to find -- if I could add,

the conversation of transparency to that stress

test so that we can get a greater level of critique

that would be provided externally, as well as the

confidence that you're feeling -- that your team is

feeling internally to this result.

So clearly I am growing more and more

confident with the stress test, that you're

underway, and look forward to what your team will

do this summer.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Well, thank you very

much, CFO. And, you know, it is challenging



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

33

because we are trying to strike a balance.

Companies are very covetous of the information on

their risk management and their tolerance for risk.

That to them is a very critical part of their

strategic plan, and then part of their -- basically

their business model that they don't necessarily

want to share.

So I understand that we need to try to find a

way of getting more information to the public so

that they have the confidence that we have

internally by going through the stress test.

CFO ATWATER: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: I would like to say,

the last thing is to do things effectively and

efficiently. I want to point out again, we do this

as about as inexpensively as any state in the

country. The cost to consumers is about $0.25 for

every thousand dollars in premium. So if you have

$4,000, it's about a dollar in cost of regulatory

services.

Before I close, I would like to take this

opportunity to say, what a great ride it's been,

what a thrill, a labor of love to be the

Insurance Commissioner of this great state, and

that I appreciate the guidance from this



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 850-697-8314

34

Financial Services Commission and past members of

the Financial Services Commission over the last

12 and a half years.

And, again, I look forward to a smooth

transition for my successor and look forward to

continuing to serve the people of Florida.

Thank you.

(APPLAUSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Thank you, Kevin.

Is there a motion to accept the report?

CFO ATWATER: So moved.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Is there a second?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI: Second.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Any comments or objections?

(NO RESPONSE).

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Hearing none, the motion

carries.

COMMISSIONER McCARTY: Thank you, Governor.

GOVERNOR SCOTT: Thanks, Kevin.

* * * *



































































































































Florida Office of Insurance Regulation (Office)

Commissioner David Altmaier

September 20, 2016

Presentation to the 

Florida Financial Services Commission

1



Presentation Agenda

2

• Hurricane Hermine Update

• Property & Casualty Market

• Life & Health Market

Performance 
Measures & 

Market Update

• Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget

• Fiscal Year 2017-2018 OIR Proposal

Legislative Budget 
Request

• Office Priorities

• Areas of Interest

2017 Legislative 
Session

http://www.floir.com/


How do we define success?

Office Objectives

Promote markets 
offering  products 

with fair, 
understandable  

coverage at 
adequate, not 

excessive/unfairly 
discriminatory rates.

Protect the public 
from illegal, 

unethical insurance 
products and 

practices.

Monitor insurer 
financial condition 
and act on issues 

as early as possible 
to prevent harm to 

consumers.

Operate in an 
efficient, effective 
and transparent 

manner.

We continue to define 
success as being 
synonymous with our 
mission which is 
“promoting a stable 
and competitive 
insurance market for 
consumers.”

3

http://www.floir.com/


Fiscal Year & Fourth Quarter 2015-2016

Performance Measures Detail

4

Objective Result Score Result Score

1
Applications for a new certificate of authority and new types of insurance added 

to an existing certificate of authority within 90 days
100% 5 100% 5

2 Life and health form and rate filing reviews completed within 45 days 99.9% 5 99.9% 5

3 Property and casualty form filing reviews completed within 45 days 100% 5 100% 5

4 Property and casualty rate filing reviews completed within 90 days 99.8% 5 100% 5

5
Market conduct exams with violations in which the Office requires companies to 

remediate
100% 5 100% 5

6
Financial exams of domestic insurers completed within 18 months of the "as of" 

exam date
100% 5 100% 5

7
Life and health priority financial examinations of domestic insurers completed 

within 18 months of the "as of" exam date
100% 5 100% 5

8
Property and casualty priority financial examinations of domestic insurers 

completed within 18 months of the "as of" exam date
100% 5 100% 5

9 Priority financial analyses completed within 60 days 100% 5 100% 5

10 Non-priority financial analyses completed within 90 days 99.9% 4 100% 5

Overall Score 4.90 5.00
Note: Scoring is based on the scale adopted by the Financial Services Commission, with 1 being lowest and 5 being highest, and each measure of equal weight.

OIR Performance Measures

Fiscal Year Total 4th Quarter

http://www.floir.com/


Activities, Accomplishments, and Opportunities

Property & Casualty

Selected Activities & 
Accomplishments

• 570,080 Citizens Property Insurance Corp. 
policies have been approved for take-out 
from January-November 2016

• Held public hearing on the rate filing from 
the National Council on Compensation 
Insurance (NCCI) to address proposed rate 
impacts associated with two Florida 
Supreme Court decisions 
– 15% Castellanos v. Next Door Company

– 2.2% Westphal v. City of St. Petersburg

– 1.8% for updates to the Health Care 
Provider Reimbursement Manual

• Personal Injury Protection (PIP) insurance 
study report

• Title insurance data call to title agencies 
and companies with 1,656 total responses

Opportunities

• Impact of third-party claims 
statewide on homeowners 
insurance rates

• Court cases affecting workers’ 
compensation insurance

• Fostering a private flood insurance 
market

• Adapting to new business models 
(e.g. ridesharing, home-sharing)

• Trade secret protections preventing 
the public’s access to company 
information available through the 
Quarterly & Supplemental 
Reporting (QUASR) system online

• Continued soft reinsurance market

5

http://www.floir.com/


Proportional View of Requested Rate Changes 2015-2016

Homeowners

Rate Filings Jan-July 2015 Rate Filings Jan-July 2016

6

Filings 
Requesting 
a Decrease

No Change

Filings 
Requesting 
an Increase

Filings 
Requesting 
a Decrease

No ChangeFilings 
Requesting 
an Increase

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

Jan-July 2015

Jan-July 2016

Number of Homeowners Filings

http://www.floir.com/


Take-Outs Approved and Assumed January to November 2016

Citizens Property Insurance Corp

7

Approved Assumed

January 130,534 19,424

February 75,115 11,529

March 71,500 2,481

April 66,500 3,351

May 81,500 3,108

June 19,535 6,197

July 15,000 1,218

August

September 15,000

October 25,650

November 69,746

Total 570,080 47,308

Citizens Policy Take-Outs

570,080

47,308

Approved Assumed

Citizens Take-Outs
January to November 

2016

http://www.floir.com/


Activities, Accomplishments, and Opportunities

Life & Health

Selected Activities & 
Accomplishments

• Per federal guidance, the Office received 15 
individual and 15 small group PPACA-
compliant health insurance rate filings for 
the 2017 plan year and proceeded to review 
the filings for compliance with state laws. 

• Held two long-term care insurance rate 
hearings in August due to the potential for 
significant impacts to Florida policyholders. 

Opportunities

• Working with the health insurance industry to 
navigate through significant shifts in market and 
regulatory dynamics

• Balancing consumer protections with maintaining 
a robust and competitive market

• Working to find solutions for seniors facing Long-
Term Care risk

• Protecting consumers from emergency medical 

transportation balance billing, especially air 

transport

• Enhancing claims-paying capacity for Health 

Maintenance Organizations (HMOs)

• Moving from a formulaic to a dynamic, principles-

based approach to life insurer solvency

8

Increases Proposed # Policyholders

Met Life 20-95% 22,796

Unum 0-114% 45,666

Long-Term Care

http://www.floir.com/


Long-Term Care
Portion of Direct Premiums from Long-Term Care Business 

9

Rank Company NAIC Code

Total LTC Earned 

Premium1

Total National 

Direct Premium2
LTC % of Total 

Premium

LTC Market 

Share

Recent Avg 

Rate Requested

1 Genworth Life Insurance Company 70025 $2,461.3 M $3,309.8 M 74.4% 22% 18%

2 John Hancock Life Insurance Company (USA) 65838 $1,542.9 M $20,189.9 M 7.6% 14% 17%

3 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company 65978 $753.2 M $32,865.5 M 2.3% 7% 62%

4 Northwestern Long Term Care Insurance Company 69000 $551.5 M $560.2 M 98.4% 5% -

5 Unum Life Insurance Company Of America 62235 $530.9 M $4,393.7 M 12.1% 5% 48%

6 Continental Casualty Company 20443 $497.9 M $4,058.9 M 12.3% 4% 32%

7 Transamerica Life Insurance Company 86231 $461.5 M $17,590. M 2.6% 4% 108%

8 Bankers Life And Casualty Company 61263 $450. M $2,158.1 M 20.9% 4% 33%

9 The Prudential Insurance Company Of America 68241 $382.6 M $22,009. M 1.7% 3% 29%

10 New York Life Insurance Company 66915 $259.7 M $13,866.5 M 1.9% 2% 4%

11 Mutual Of Omaha Insurance Company 71412 $256.6 M $1,172.1 M 21.9% 2% 11%

12 Genworth Life Insurance Company Of New York 72990 $227.2 M $426.4 M 53.3% 2% -

13 Metlife  Insurance Company USA 87726 $224.6 M $9,620.2 M 2.3% 2% 7%

14 State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company 25178 $215.3 M $23,535.4 M 0.9% 2% 25%

15 Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company 65935 $212.3 M $20,741.7 M 1.0% 2% -

16 Riversource Life Insurance Company 65005 $203.6 M $6,533.9 M 3.1% 2% 43%

17 Allianz Life Insurance Company Of North America 90611 $186.5 M $11,298.7 M 1.7% 2% 20%

18 John Hancock Life Insurance Company 93610 $177.5 M $613.5 M 28.9% 2% 13%

19 Senior Health Insurance Company Of Pennsylvania 76325 $129.1 M $129.1 M 100.0% 1% 25%

20 Medamerica Insurance Company 69515 $89.3 M $89.6 M 99.7% 1% 30%

21 Union Security Insurance Company 70408 $80.4 M $1,033.6 M 7.8% 1% 116%

22 United Of Omaha Life Insurance Company 69868 $76.7 M $4,023.8 M 1.9% 1% -

23 Ability Insurance Company (FKA Medico Life) 71471 $74.5 M $76.1 M 98.0% 1% 36%

24 First Unum Life Insurance Company 64297 $66.5 M $418.8 M 15.9% 1% -

25 Berkshire Life Insurance Company Of America 71714 $65.5 M $521.1 M 12.6% 1% -Total Market 10,177,104,144 201,235,669,967

** -  Indicates  that the company has  not requested rate changes  on exis ting products  in Florida.

*  The top 25 companies  make up roughly 91% of the entire national  market and those companies  in bold i ta l ics  are s ti l l  sel l ing in the s tate of Florida  per the CY 2015 GAP Report.

1.  Data taken from Long-Term Care Experience Reporting Form 2 (Summary) for a l l  Li fe, Health, and P&C fi lers  with the NAIC and the results  are in $Mi l l ions .

2.  Data taken from Exhibi t 1, Part 1 for l i fe fi lers  and the Underwriting and Investment Exhibi t, Part 2 for health and P&C fi lers  and the results  are in $Mi l l ions .

National Long-Term Care Top 25* by Total LTC Earned Premium

http://www.floir.com/


Domestic HMOs

10

Income Statement Data 2011-2015*

• Data taken from the Five Year Historical exhibit for each domestic HMO.
1. Loss ratio is defined as the sum of medical related expenses divided by revenues
2. Administrative ratio is defined as the sum of administrative expenses divided by revenues

$. M

$5,000. M

$10,000. M

$15,000. M

$20,000. M

$25,000. M

$30,000. M

$35,000. M

$40,000. M

$45,000. M

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s

Total Revenues 2011-2015

Total Revenues

Our domestic HMOs have experienced a challenging 
environment over recent years.  As revenues have 
continued to climb, profits have been significantly 
reduced.  This is in part due to increasing expenses, 
medical costs, and the implementation of the 
Affordable Care Act.

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Profit Margin, Administrative Ratio2

2011-2015

Profit Margin Administrative Ratio

2011 82.9%

2012 82.0%

2013 84.4%

2014 86.8%

2015 85.8%

% Increase 3.6%

Loss Ratio1

http://www.floir.com/


11

Office Budget – Fiscal Year 2016-2017

• Team of 292 Employees (Down 7.4% from a peak of 315 
employees in FY 2007-08)

• Total Budget of $30,906,841

• Exclusively funded by the Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund  -
no General Revenue is utilized for the Office’s budget

• The Office is administratively housed within the Department 
of Financial Services for some administrative and technology 
support services 

11

http://www.floir.com/


FY 2016-2017 and FY 2017-2018

Office Budget

12

OIR Proposal

Legislative Appropriation Category FY 2016-2017 FY 2017-2018

Salaries and Benefits  $    19,959,767  $     21,488,526 

Financial Examinations (Pass-Through)  $       4,926,763  $       4,926,763 

* Property & Casualty Examinations ($3,501,763)

* Life & Health Examinations ($1,425,000)

Expenses (includes $1.1 million for office building rent to DMS)  $       2,481,072  $       2,491,293 

Contracted Services  $       1,430,726  $       1,430,726 

Florida Public Hurricane Model - Maintenance & Support to FIU  $          632,639  $          632,639 

Florida Public Hurricane Model – Year 4 Enhancements (Non-recurring )  $          850,000  $                       - 

Other Personal Services  $          290,169  $          290,169 

Risk Management Insurance  $          112,446  $          128,297 

Operating Capital Outlay  $            98,000  $            98,000 

Transfer to DMS (HR Contract)  $            97,856  $            94,605 

Lease/Purchase/Equipment  $            27,403  $            27,403 

Total  $    30,906,841  $     31,608,421 

http://www.floir.com/


Legislative Budget Request - FY 2017-2018

Actuarial Services

• Additional Property & Casualty Actuary

• Reclassification of 8 Actuaries to Sr. Actuary 

• Reclassification of 8 Positions to Sr. Actuarial Analyst

Request: $488,651 

Staffing Needs

• Reclassification of Positions - Property & Casualty Financial Oversight

• Reclassification of Positions – Life & Health Financial Oversight

• Additional Rate – Other

Request: $748,829 

13

http://www.floir.com/


2017 Legislative Issues

• Third Party Property Claims 
• Modernizing Capital Standards for Health Plans
• Continuing Care Retirement Communities
• Long-Term Care
• Eliminating redundant and/or obsolete statutory language

• Workers’ Compensation
• Personal Automobile Insurance 

14

http://www.floir.com/

	Blank Page

